
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
TABLE OF CONTENTS FOR MINUTES

August 7, 2012

Call to Order 2
Council and Staff Attendance 2
Public Attendance 2
Agenda Changes 2
Public Comment 2
Consent Agenda 2
Old Business 2

WWTP Construction Project Status Report 2
Fire Station Project-Site Layout Options 3
Hiland Water Corporation Agreement .4

New Business 4
Interim Financing-Bond Anticipation Note .4
Resolution No. 2012-13, Interfund Loan Authorized 5
Resolution No. 2012-14, OR Transp. Infrastructure Bank 5

Council Concerns and Committee Reports 5
Mayor's Report 5
City Administrator's Report 6
Public Comment 6
Executive Session: 6

1



City of Dundee
City Council Meeting Minutes

August 7,2012

Call to Order
Mayor Crawford called the meeting to order at 7:02 P.M.

Council and Staff Attendance
Present: Mayor Crawford, Councilors Adlong, Munson, Miller, Pugsley, and Reddell. Excused
Absence: Councilor Nelson. Staff members: Rob Daykin, City Administrator, Jeff Bennett, City
Attorney, John Stock, Fire Chief, Todd Miller, Public Works, and Debra Manning, Secretary.

Public Attendance
Michael Humm, Kennedy/Jenks, Scott Moore, Group Mackenzie, Chad Daarud, and David
Jackson.

Agenda Changes
None.

Public Comment
None.

Consent Agenda
The motion was made and seconded to approve Consent Agenda item 5.1 City Council Minutes,
July 17,2012. The motion passed unanimously.

Old Business
WWTP Construction Project Status Report

Michael Humm, Kennedy/Jenks advised the start up for the WWTP went very smoothly. The
plant has been processing all of Dundee's waste water for about a week. Equipment startup was
done prior to the addition of water, followed by clean water testing. Seed sludge was donated
from the City of McMinnville's biological system (65,000 gallons over two days) and once
permeation started the plant was brought online. The lagoons are offline. It was noted a very
large, industrial dump of chemicals or materials with low pH could cause an imbalance at the
plant, but it would be addressed by adjustments at the facility.

Councilor Adlong asked why we are not processing class "A" water. Humm advised the
difference between class "A" and class "B" is the ultraviolet dose rate. It may not be cost
effective to not produce class "A" water to send to the river. Adlong asked how the class "B"
water will affect aquatic life in the lagoon. Humm replied there will not be any harm to aquatic
life. Adlong supports education of the wineries regarding the affect of their waste on the WWTP.
Daykin noted staff will be monitoring. The 12th and Maple Winery has a pretreatment process in
place.

The buildings will have stucco applied this week. The process basin has the grating installed, has
been cleaned, and the lighting is Dark Sky compliant. Swale update: electrical conduit has been
installed to the bank of the dam; some grading has been completed with a rough graded swale
alignment to the Willamette River. The engineers are reviewing a modification to the easement to
address the issue with the cottonwood trees.

2



Pay estimate number #13 is $669,409.25 includes the remaining MBRs, start up costs, grading
and painting. The project is 93% complete with $8,737,046.70 requested to date. Substantial
completion is pending work on UV pumps and VFD programming, followed by a thirty-day test
run of the plant and a seven-day stress test. Final completion is scheduled for September 5th, but
will probably occur later in the month. The swale is 10% complete with pay estimate $55,000.

C. Adlong inquired if water was being discharged to lagoon four. Humm advised the water is
being held in lagoon two until the outfall is completed and the plant can operate within the
permit. The City has a split compliance permit, with water quality measured at the WTTP and
effluent temperature measured at lagoon four. Councilor Pugsley asked for a follow up report on
water going into lagoon four. Mayor Crawford asked for a breakdown of the difference between
class "A" and class "B" water production.

Fire Station Project-Site Layout Options
Escrow closed on the sale of the Meredith property to the City. Scott Moore, Group Mackenzie,
reviewed the site layout options in the Council packet.

• The constraints for the existing property include: the footprint of single story station
would extend beyond current property boundaries, limited apparatus movability, and
limited parking. The apparatus bay will be double stacked, with front and back doors
allowing rigs to leave from either direction. It would include a bay for maintenance and
an additional apparatus.

• For the Fire Hall to remain on the current site would require a two story (Site Plan 1)
leaving Eighth Street as a public ROW with parking across Eighth Street. Concerns
include: safety issue with emergency responders having to cross a public street to respond
to a call, future expansion is not allowed with the site plan, Eighth Street is in poor
condition, and operations would need to relocate during construction (approximately
eight months).

C. Adlong inquired the cost difference between a single-story versus a two-story building. Moore
noted a two-story building is generally about 10% more expensive than single-story building.

• Site plans 2, 3, 4, and 5 consider vacating Eighth Street to utilize all the lots. Plans 2 and
3 consider placing the building in the existing building's footprint. Considerations
include operations would need to relocate during construction, and site plan 2 does not
provide for future expansion.
Site plans 4 and 5 address the need to relocate allowing the current facility to operate
during construction using a phased approach. Site plans 4 and 5 allow use of the existing
facility during construction, phased improvements, and meet the requirements of the Fire
Department from their needs assessment.

C. Pugsley inquired the cost of relocation. Moore replied that Hood River Fire Department
expended $40,000 on relocating operations onto city owned property.

The preference of the Fire Department and Group Mackenzie's recommendation is site plan 5, a
single story positioned on the south end of the site. The plan is less expensive with less square
footage to meet program requirements, allows more shared uses with the community and the
volunteers, provides better connectivity within the building, allows operations to continue during
construction, and provides the ability to add a future bay.

C. Adlong asked if consideration had been given for solar panels. Moore advised they are
required by the State to allocate a given percentage of funding towards solar energy. They have
not reviewed strategies at this point.

3



C. Pugsley asked if they would address storm water. Moore replied the facility will have
pretreatments and detention using passive measures such as swales. C. Adlong inquired if the
City will pay the monthly storm water fees for impermeable surfaces on the property. Daykin
advised that the city facilities do not pay this fee. Moore suggested looking at options such as
pervious pavers and concrete for areas excluding apparatus driveways.

Daykin advised that staff needs the architectural report with a site plan to complete the
application to Rural Development. He cautioned the Council not to build on the current site if
there is any expectation that Eight Street will be developed. Councilor Munson questioned the
street vacation process. Daykin replied the process would take several months involving a
Planning Commission hearing, a public hearing before the Council and would likely combine this
with a zone change to public use.

Discussion followed on the use of Eight Street for connectivity versus a Ninth/Tenth street
connection, the time needed to find another property, the need to submit the application for the
USDA funding before September 30th, and the project's budget. The motion was made and
seconded to authorize Group Mackenzie to proceed with further development of proposed site
plan number 5. C. Adlong suggested the inclusion of a pedestrian connection across the property.
Moore advised that should be easily accommodated. Adlong asked if any of the trees could be
retained. Moore replied it is dependent on their location to the property line and if they obscure
the apparatus driver's view of the highway. A suggested option is placement of new trees in the
landscaping. C.A. Daykin shared the intent to hold a workshop with the Council, the taskforce,
and any other interested parties. The date for the workshop was set for Wednesday, August 29th
at 7 P.M. at the Fire Station. The motion passed unanimously.

C. Reddell inquired the number of apparatus the department currently has. Chief Stock replied
seven. Reddell asked if a percentage was used more frequently than the rest. Stock affirmed.
Reddell asked if the most frequently pieces could be deployed 75% of time though the front.
Stock replied yes. Moore advised the back bays would hold the smaller rigs.

The Mayor questioned when Public Works would need to be relocated. Moore estimated by the
later part of 20 13.

Hiland Water Corporation Agreement
An updated agreement reviewed by staff and the owners of Hiland Water Corporation was
presented to the Council. Exhibit E, the release of the existing NE Dundee Waterline Association
Waterline customers, will be forwarded from the City Attorney on Wednesday. Staff recommends
approval of the agreement. The motion was made and seconded to approve the agreement with
Hiland Water Corporation to provide water service to the NE Dundee Waterline Association
accounts. C. Pugsley questioned "per occurrence" under 4.6. Attorney Bennett noted 4.1 defines
an en1ergency, 4.6 sets the two week limitation and 4.9 allows the City to handle on a case-by
case basis. The motion passed unanimously. Daykin noted that the customers on the NE Dundee
Waterline Association have to sign a waiver before the agreement can be implemented.

New Business
Interim Financing-Bond Anticipation Note

Four proposals were received for interim financing from: Columbia Bank, Wedbush Bank, Bank
of America, and Key Bank (the lowest costs). Their agreement is contingent upon a condition
letter from Rural Development of loan approval. The City may not use the Rural Development
loan and may use bonds. Key Bank is reviewing with their staff. Staff recommendation is to bring
back an agreement with Key Bank based on the terms proposed. IfKey Bank does not proceed,
then staff would work with the next lowest cost bidder, Columbia Bank Mayor Crawford

4



suggested approaching West Coast Bank to determine if they can provide a competitive rate, if
Key Bank does not proceed. C. Pugsley noted that West Coast Bank was approached for the
WWTP project and they were not interested in submitting a proposal. Crawford inquired what
was budgeted for interim financing interest and fees. Daykin estimated $34,000. The motion was
made and seconded to accept the proposal from Key Bank to provide interim financing for the
construction of a fire station subject to completion of acceptable financing documents. The
motion passed unanimously.

Resolution No. 2012-13, Interfund Loan Authorized
The resolution proposes a loan from the Water CIP Fund into Fire Station Construction fund for a
sixty-day period until interim financing is in place to address incurred costs on the Fire Station
project. The motion was made and seconded to approve Resolution No. 2012-13, a resolution
authorizing an interfund loan of $220,000 from the Water CIP Fund to the Fire Station
Construction Fund. The motion passed unanimously.

Resolution No. 2012-14, OR Transp. Infrastructure Bank
Tom Meek, ODOT, is requiring a resolution authorizing application to Oregon Transportation
Infrastructure Bank. The Mayor asked if this is being required of the other entities involved.
Daykin did not know, but the information has been forwarded to them. The motion was made
and seconded to approve Resolution No. 2012-14, a resolution authorizing application of an
Oregon Transportation Infrastructure Bank loan of up to $315,200 for the City of Dundee's share
of the local funding match for Phase I of the Newberg-Dundee Bypass Project. The motion
passed unanimously.

Council Concerns and Committee Reports
The Tourism Committee received the third phase of the logo design. The committee is working,
by email, to narrow the choices to two for a public vote.

The Parks Advisory Committee has scheduled a cleanup day for the Harvey Creek Trail on
Saturday, October 13th. They are looking for volunteers to remove ivy. C. Adlong is working
with CPRD to try a pretreatment prior to the workday.

The Parks Advisory Committee is considering use of plants from the Newberg High School
Horticulture program, possibly for replacement of the arborvitae hedge at City Hall.

C. Adlong asked for an update on the status of the lights at the 12th and Maple Winery, which are
not Dark Sky compliant and have not been addressed. C.A. Daykin replied the winery was to
bring compliance suggestions back to the City. They are not required to comply as the light
fixtures were preexisting. Staff will follow up. Adlong noted that the Council may need to change
compliance requirements ifpeople will not voluntarily comply and suggested the possibility of
offering incentives for compliance by local business.

Mayor's Report
Mayor Crawford spoke with West Coast Bank's Regional IYfanager, who inquired what help they
could offer the city. It was noted that the Dundee Civic Association is struggling. They will look
to dedicate resources to help address the issue.

ODOT has scheduled a ground breaking for the Newberg-Dundee Bypass on Wednesday, August
29th on Sandoz Road off ofWYllooski Road. Bring your shovel!

Chehalem Park & Recreation District is hosting the Early Bird Rotary at the Chehalem Paddle
Launch on Thursday, August 23rd at 7A.M.

5



City Administrator's Report
The draft report of the environmental checklist for the application to Rural Development should
be completed by the consultant this week. Additional work is being required by Rural
Development related to cultural and tribal notifications. This will be subcontracted to Willamette
CRA at an estimated additional project cost of $1,100.

Assistant City Recorder Manning worked with the Safety Committee to procure grant funds
through City/County fusurance Services placing the handrail outside of City Hall to address
safety issues with people cutting through the low-water demonstration garden.

Surface sealing maintenance program will be completed August 20th on Seventh Street.

C. Reddell inquired when the arborvitaes at City Hall would be removed. Daykin replied that he
is working with CPRD to address the issue.

The City/County Dinner is scheduled for Thursday, August 16th at Red Ridge Farm.

Public Comment
None.

Executive Session:
The City Council entered Executive Session at 9:22 P.M. in accordance with ORS 192.660 (2) (e)
to conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to negotiate real property
transactions. Executive Session ended at 9:36 P.M. and the Council did not reconvene.

c) ~\fl~
Ted Crawford
Mayor

Attest:

9Yb~
Debra L. Manning, CMC
Assistant City Recorder

6


